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II. Appearances at the Hearing 
 

A. On behalf of the State of Ohio:  Marc E. Dann, Attorney General, and Kyle C. 
Wilcox, Assistant Attorney General. 

 
B. On behalf of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani:  Beth A. Wilson and Brad F. Hubbell, Esqs. 

 
 

EVIDENCE EXAMINED 
 
I. Testimony Heard 
 

A. Presented by the State 
 

Mohammad Anvari-Hamedani, M.D., upon cross-examination 
 
B. Presented by the Respondent 
 

Dr. Anvari-Hamedani, upon direct examination 
Janet Gillig 
Anne Risner 
Dorathy Gangwer 
Carol Reffner 

 
II. Exhibits Examined 
 

A. Presented by the State 
 

State’s Exhibits 1A through 1L:  Procedural exhibits. 
 
State’s Exhibit 2:  Indictment in United States of America v. Mohammad Anvari-
Hamedani, Case No. 3:04CR786, United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio. 
 
State’s Exhibit 3:  Plea Agreement in U.S. v. Anvari-Hamedani, Case No. 3:04CR786. 
 
State’s Exhibit 4:  Judgment in U.S. v. Anvari-Hamedani, Case No. 3:04CR786. 
 

B. Presented by the Respondent 
 

Respondent’s Exhibit A:  March 29, 2007, letter from the Honorable James G. Carr, 
Chief Judge of the United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio. 
 
Respondent’s Exhibit B:  Respondent’s Sentencing Memorandum in U.S. v. Anvari-
Hamedani, Case No. 3:04CR786. 
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SUMMARY OF THE EVIDENCE 
 
All exhibits and the transcript, even if not specifically mentioned, were thoroughly reviewed and 
considered by the Hearing Examiner prior to preparing this Report and Recommendation. 
 
Background 
 
1. Mohammad Anvari-Hamedani, M.D., was born in 1934 in Iran.  He attended Tehran 

University for his undergraduate and medical school education.   In 1964 or 1965, he came 
to the United States and completed an internship at Norwalk General Hospital, in Norwalk, 
Connecticut.  He next participated in a pathology residency because, if he had returned to 
Iran and wanted to become board-certified there, he was required to have completed six 
months in a pathology residency.  Then, in 1966, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani commenced and 
later completed a three-year obstetrics and gynecology [OB/GYN] residency at St. 
Elizabeth Hospital in Youngstown, Ohio.  He then worked for two years in Warren, Ohio.  
(Hearing Transcript [Tr.] at 25-30) 

 
2. In 1971, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani moved to Fostoria, Ohio, where he commenced his own 

private medical practice, providing OB/GYN services.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani noted that he 
was the first medical specialist in Fostoria.  From 1971 to the present, Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani has practiced medicine in Fostoria.  He provided OB/GYN services for many 
years but, when his wife became ill in the early 1990s, he limited his practice to 
gynecology services.  Currently, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani sees approximately six to eight 
gynecology patients a day and works four days a week.  (Tr. at 30-34) 

 
Criminal Indictment, Plea, Conviction, and Sentence 
 
3. On November 3, 2004, an indictment was filed in the United States District Court for the 

Northern District of Ohio charging Dr. Anvari-Hamedani with 38 felony counts.1  The 
charges alleged:  Illegal Exportation to Iran, Attempt to Illegally Export to Iran, Illegal 
Exportation to Iran – Hawala,2 Illegal Export to Iran – Certificate of Deposit, Money 

 
1Dr. Anvari-Hamedani was convicted of 36 of the 38 counts in the indictment.  The State sought to admit an 
unredacted, certified copy of the indictment into the record.  Respondent’s counsel expressly concurred with 
admission of a complete copy of the indictment, including the two counts that were dismissed by the federal 
government.  Thus, the record includes an unredacted, certified copy of the indictment.  (Tr. at 92-94) 
 
2“Hawala” is described in the indictment as 

 
an alternative remittance system which transfers money (usually across borders) without physical or 
electronic transfer of funds.  Money changers (“hawaladars”) receive cash in one country.  
Correspondent hawaladars in another country dispense an identical amount (minus minimal fees and 
commissions) to a recipient or, less often, to a bank account. 

 
(St. Ex. 2 at 5)  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani explained that Hawala is like Western Union but, with Hawala, the funds are 
exchanged into the currency at the receiving end.  (Tr. at 90) 
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Laundering, False Tax Returns, and Foreign Bank Account Reports.  (State Exhibit [St. 
Ex.] 2)  The case was designated United States of America v. Mohammad Anvari-
Hamedani, Case No. 3:04CR786. 

 
4. On April 24, 2006, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani agreed to plead guilty to counts one through 19, 

and counts 22 through 38 of the indictment in U.S. v. Anvari-Hamedani.  The government 
agreed to dismiss counts 20 and 21 of the indictment.  Among other things, the parties 
agreed the following computations and stipulations are based upon “readily provable 
facts”: 

 
a. The facts stated in the Indictment are true and accurate. 
 
b. Between June 19, and August 21, 2001, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani willfully 

directed that funds totaling $500,000 be transferred from his account at Merrill 
Lynch, Toledo, Ohio, to accounts in Dubai, United Arab Emirates, and Hong 
Kong, knowing that the funds would be transferred from those accounts to an 
account at the Bank Melli Iran in Laleh, Iran. 

 
c. On September 24, 2001, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani willfully attempted to transfer 

$150,000 from his account at Merrill Lynch, Toledo, Ohio, to an account in 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates, knowing that the funds would be transferred 
from that account to an account in Iran. 

 
d. Beginning in October 2001, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani transferred funds from 

accounts in banks located in Great Britain to an account at the Standard 
Chartered Bank, Dubai, United Arab Emirates.  From November 4, 2001, and 
continuing until March 14, 2002, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani knowingly and 
willfully transferred funds totaling $570,000 from the Standard Chartered Bank 
to an account at the Bank Melli Iran in Lelah, Iran. 

 
e. Using a remittance system known as Hawala, from October 2001 to February 

2002, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani knowingly and willfully did cause $169,980 to be 
transferred to Iran. 

 
f. From October 2001 to February 2002, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani knowingly and 

willfully caused to be transferred approximately 1,848,000 Great Britain 
Pounds (valued at approximately $2,645,000) from Great Britain to the Bank 
Melli Iran in Lelah, Iran. 

 
g. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani transferred and caused to be transferred the above-

identified funds in willful violation of the Executive Orders and regulations 
prohibiting new investments, including the contribution of funds, in Iran. 
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h. Beginning in April 1999 and continuing each year until March 2002, 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani filed U.S. Individual Income Tax Returns, Form 1040, 
for tax years 1998, 1999, 2000, and 2001, in which he knowingly and willfully 
falsely reported (on Schedule B, Part III, line 7a) that he did not have an 
interest in or a signature or other authority over a financial interest in a foreign 
country.  During those years, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani had accounts at financial 
institutions in Great Britain, and failed to report interest income earned from 
those accounts totaling $758,866.  The total tax loss was approximately 
$275,000. 

 
i. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani knowingly and willfully failed to file a Report of Foreign 

Bank and Financial Accounts for calendar years 1999 – 2001, when he was 
required to do so because he had a financial interest in, and signature authority 
over, financial accounts in Great Britain, which accounts exceeded $10,000 for 
each of the calendar years. 

 
(St. Ex. 3) 

 
5. On November 20, 2006, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani pleaded guilty to and was convicted of 36 of 

the 38 counts charged in U.S. v. Anvari-Hamedani.  He was sentenced to three years of 
probation as to each count, which would run concurrently.  Also, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani was: 
 
a. Required to serve 60 days in a community center. 
 
b. Required to perform 500 hours of community service. 
 
c. Required to provide access to all requested financial information. 
 
d. Required to make full and complete disclosures of income, assets, and all other 

aspects of his financial circumstances. 
 
e. Required to provide full and complete cooperation to the Internal Revenue 

Service in the computation assessment, and collection of any back taxes. 
 
f. Required to pay in full any outstanding taxes prior to completion of probation. 
 
g. Required to pay a $500,000 fine and a $3,600 assessment.  
 
h. Required to forfeit $650,000 to the federal government. 
 
i. Prohibited from incurring any new credit or establishing any additional lines of 

credit without approval. 
 
(St. Ex. 4) 
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Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s Explanation 
 
6. In the mid 1980s, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani testified that he visited Iran.  He became 

interested in donating to his alma mater.  A relative in Iran noted that another related 
Iranian university, Shahd University, was in greater need of funds.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani 
decided to donate the funds necessary to build a conference center for the medical school 
at Shahd University.  He noted that, originally, the project was expected to cost $2 million.  
(Tr. at 57-58; Respondent’s Exhibit [Resp. Ex.] B at 2) 

 
7. As to the legality of the money transfers, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani stated that he had read in 

the newspaper that nobody was permitted to invest large sums of money in Iranian gas and 
oil, but he was not aware that there were other limits on the dollar amounts or that there 
were other limits on the purposes for investments in Iran.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani noted 
that, prior to September 11, 2001, his broker at Merrill Lynch handled his money transfer 
requests so that the funds were provided to the university in Iran.  However, after 
September 11, 2001, Merrill Lynch was not willing to make the transfers and dropped him 
as a client.  (Tr. at 43-46, 80) 

 
8. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani testified that he had not believed Merrill Lynch’s statements that the 

money transfers had become illegal.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani forwarded more funds himself, 
via Hawala and from accounts in Great Britain.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani did not recall when 
he opened the bank accounts in Great Britain, but stated that he opened them “not a long 
time” before those particular transfers.  (Tr. at 50, 60, 63) 

 
9. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani explained that, in April 2002, the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

and another government agency executed a warrant at his home.  In November 2004, he 
was arrested. (Tr. at 38-39, 42-42) 

 
10. Over the course of several years, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani donated approximately $4 million 

for the conference center.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani explained that he had these funds because 
they were income he had earned from his investments.  At the time that Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani had last received news of the project’s status, which was four year before the 
hearing, the project cost more than $9 million, it was still short of funds by $4 or $5 
million, and the conference center was not completed.  (Tr. at 59-61, 86-88) 

 
11. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani acknowledged that he made the alleged money transfers and signed 

the tax returns, but denied knowing that they were illegal and incorrect at the time.  He 
stated that he felt that he had to plead guilty to the charges because he is Muslim, he was 
born in Iran, and he would be automatically convicted.  (Tr. at 72-73, 78-79) 

 
12. At the time of the hearing, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani testified that he was under probation.  He 

noted that he had completed one-fifth of the community service hours imposed.  He 
planned to begin serving the 60 days in a community control center in Toledo in April 
2007.  He also stated that he has paid the $650,000 forfeiture, and “back taxes” and 
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associated penalties.  He still had to pay the $500,000 fine, which was due in May 2007.  
(Tr. at 64-67, 83-84) 

 
Letter from the Federal District Court Judge 
 
13. The Honorable James G. Carr, the Chief Judge of the United States District Court for the 

Northern District of Ohio, wrote a letter of support for Dr. Anvari-Hamedani.  Judge Carr 
accepted Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s guilty plea and sentenced him in U.S. v. Anvari-
Hamedani.  Judge Carr stated that, despite the seriousness of the crimes that Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani admitted to committing, Judge Carr decided not to impose a term of imprisonment, 
although it was otherwise required under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines.  Judge Carr 
explained his reasons for deviating from the Federal Sentencing Guidelines, noting that he 
has never received as many letters seeking leniency for a defendant as in Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani’s case.  Judge Carr also concluded that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani presents “no 
threat to the community, and there is no reason whatsoever to be at all concerned that he 
will ever again violate the law.”  Judge Carr noted that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has paid the 
“back taxes” and penalties, which were in excess of $1 million and were double the 
amount estimated to have been owed at the time of sentencing.  (Resp. Ex. A) 

 
14. Judge Carr further explained the impact of his sentence and made a request of the Board: 
 

As a result of the tax liabilities, [forfeiture], and fines, Dr. Anvari3 will be 
destitute.  Indeed, he must sell his very modest home to satisfy, in part, his 
remaining financial obligations under my sentence.  If deprived of the ability 
to continue working as doctor, he will be utterly impoverished. 
 
Even allowed to continue to work, Dr. Anvari, I should note, will have 
obligations under my sentencing order to pay a fine that will exceed his ability 
to pay. 
 
That condition cannot, as it might for many others, be alleviated by other 
family members.  He and his late wife had no children.  Thus, Dr. Anvari 
must rely upon himself alone for support.  He can do so only if his license is 
not suspended. 
 
This is also a condition that I did not anticipate when I sentenced Dr. Anvari.  
I had anticipated, and intended, that Dr. Anvari be left with resources, albeit 
modest, sufficient to support himself and retire in due course with a modicum 
of financial security. 
 
I fashioned Dr. Anvari’s sentence to minimize the impact on his patients. * * * 

 
3Dr. Anvari-Hamedani noted, at the commencement of the hearing, that “Hamedani” is the place where he was born 
in Iran and, for practical purposes, he did not use it for his last name.  (Tr. at 5) 
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I urge as strongly as I possibly can that the Board impose discipline that does 
not include a suspension of Dr. Anvari’s medical license. 

 
(Resp. Ex. A) 

 
Testimony from Patients and Community Members 
 
15. Four patients of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani testified in support of him.  First, Janet Gillig 

testified.  She noted that she has been his patient for nearly 35 years.  For a number of 
years, she has not resided in Fostoria, but she still travels 15 miles to see him.  She 
described the medical care she has received from Dr. Anvari-Hamedani as “excellent”.  
She noted that she has had a number of maladies and had a baby late in life.  She testified 
that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has “always been a caring doctor” and she “can’t imagine going 
to another doctor.”  Ms. Gillig also stated that, in the Fostoria community, Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani was well accepted and has had many patients.  (Tr. at 96-97, 100) 

 
16. Anne Risner testified next.  She explained that she has been Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s patient 

for 33 years and also knew Dr. Anvari-Hamedani because her father was a physician in the 
community as well.  She stated her opinion of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani: 

 
I think he's a very kind and compassionate person.  I think he treats each of his 
patients as a person.  I had twins 30 years ago.  And when I saw him in K-
Mart when they were three weeks old, he asked how they were, and he called 
them by name, which I thought was kind of impressive; that he wouldn't just 
remember that I was his patient, but he remembered both babies' names.  For 
some reason that sort of stuck with me, that a doctor would remember 
something like that, a little detail.  He didn't have my chart where he could 
glance down and see who they were. 
 
I was impressed with not just that, but the fact that he has always been 
available.  Like if you call him, you could call him at his office or you could 
call him at home or you could -- he was not the type that would say -- just 
have his patients go to the emergency room after hours.  You took as long as 
you wanted if you were in his office to talk.  You never felt like you were 
rushed through. 

 
(Tr. at 102-103)  Additionally, Ms. Risner stated that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani financially 
assisted his patients when they could not afford to pay for medical services and did so 
without their feeling as if they were accepting charity.  (Tr. at 106; see also, Resp. Ex. B at 
9-10, 14-20, 22, 23) 

 
17. Dorathy Gangwer testified third.  She has been a patient of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani for 22 

years.  She described him as “open and honest,” thorough, professional, a good listener, 
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and well respected in the community.  She recalled two incidents in which Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani put the health of the patient first, above other concerns.  Moreover, Ms. 
Gangwer testified that she does not want to look for another doctor, stating, “I don't know 
that I would actually go to a doctor, you know, unless I absolutely necessarily had to, or go 
to the emergency room if I could not go to him.”  (Tr. at 109-114) 

 
18. Next, Carol Reffner testified.  She has been a patient of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani for 34 years.  

She stated that, in her opinion, he is extraordinarily competent and experienced.  She noted 
that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has researched drug interactions for her.  She stated that she 
does not wish to find another doctor.  Moreover, Ms. Reffner pointed out that: 

 
* * *  since he doesn't do obstetrics anymore and hasn't for some time, most of 
Dr. Anvari's patients are 40 years old and older.  And these are specifically the 
type of people that get comfortable with someone and don't want to leave 
them. 
 
So whether that's a psychological reason or a financial reason or a practical 
thing or strictly medical, or all of the above, there are many, many reasons 
why all of the women that are his patients that I know -- and from a logical 
standpoint, that's where we want to stay. 
 

(Tr. at 117-119)  Additionally, Ms. Reffner stated that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani is very civic 
minded, having worked, supported and/or provided free medical services to various 
groups, including the Fostoria Footlighters, St. Wendelin Catholic Church, American Red 
Cross, the Blood Bank and “Emergency Services”.  Furthermore, Ms. Reffner testified that 
she would like the Board to know that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani privately paid for 
prescriptions for his patients who could not afford to purchase them.   More specifically, 
she explained: 
 

I don't mean free samples that the pharmaceutical manufacturers drop off that 
a lot of the doctors give out.  He has quietly paid script bills for people at 
pharmacies out of his own pocket.  One time I kind of asked him about that.  * 
* *  I said, just how much do you subsidize people?  He said it averaged him 
about $15,000 a year, which maybe compared, to what he made, it wasn't a lot 
of money, but it is sure a lot more than I have given to the poor. 
 
I think that kind of devotion to a patient and to a community, you can't want a 
better humanitarian than that.  And for this man to not be able to practice 
medicine, that's all he has left.  * * *  It is important to the community, it's 
important to him, and it's important to his patients that he be able to continue 
with what he knows how to do and what he does very well. 

 
(Tr. at 121-125) 
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Other Information 
 
19. At present, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani is 73 years old.  He suffers from a chronic blood 

disorder related to the blood platelets.  For more than ten years, he has taken medication to 
control the disorder.  (Tr. at 36-37; Resp. Ex. B at 8-9) 

 
20. Dr. Anvari-Hamedani noted that there are two other OB/GYNs working in Fostoria 

currently.  However, one of them is in poor health.  (Tr. at 88-89) 
 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. On November 3, 2004, the grand Jury for the United States District Court for the Northern 

District of Ohio, Western Division, filed a 38-count indictment against Mohammad 
Anvari-Hamedani, M.D. 

 
2. On November 20, 2006, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, 

Western Division, pursuant to a Plea Agreement between the United States of America and 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani, he pleaded guilty to and was found guilty of: 
 
a. Counts 1 to 7 (Illegal Exportation to Iran), in violation of 50 United States 

Code [U.S.C.] §§ 1702 and 1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, from 
or about June 19 through on or about August 21, 2001, he knowingly and 
willfully exported and caused to be exported from the United States to Iran, 
funds and assets totaling of $500,000. 

 
b. Count 8 (Attempt to Illegally Export to Iran), in violation of 50 U.S.C. §§ 

1702 and 1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, on or about September 
24, 2001, he knowingly and willfully attempted to export $150,000 from his 
account with Merrill Lynch located in Toledo, Ohio, to Dubai, United Arab 
Emirates, for transfer to Iran. 

 
c. Counts 9 to 13 (Illegal Export to Iran), in violation of 50 U.S.C. §§ 1702 and 

1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, from on or about November 4, 
2001, through on or about March 14, 2002, he knowingly and willfully exported 
and caused to be exported to Iran, funds and assets totaling $570,000. 

 
d. Counts 14 through 19 (Illegal Exportation to Iran – Hawala), in violation of 50 

U.S.C. §§ 1702 and 1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, from on or 
about October 24, 2001, through on or about February 4, 2002, he knowingly 
and willfully violated Presidential Orders issued under the International 
Emergency Economic Powers Act and transferred currency, funds, and assets 
totaling $169,980 to Iran by use of a remittance system known as Hawala. 
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e. Count 22 (Illegal Export to Iran – Certificate of Deposit), in violation of 50 
U.S.C. §§ 1702 and 1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, in or around 
January 2002, he knowingly and willfully exported and caused to be exported 
to Iran, funds and assets in the amount of 1,000,000 Great Britain Pounds. 

 
f. Count 23 (Illegal Export to Iran – Certificate of Deposit), in violation of 50 

U.S.C. §§ 1702 and 1705.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, from in or 
about February 2002 to in or around March 2002, he knowingly and willfully 
exported and caused to be exported to Iran, funds and assets in the amount of 
848,792 Great Britain Pounds. 

 
g. Counts 24 through 31 (Money Laundering), in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

1956(a)(2).  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, from on or about June 19 
through September 24, 2001, he knowingly transferred funds and/or attempted 
to transfer funds in the amount of $650,000 from an account in Toledo, Ohio, 
to Dubai, United Arab Emirates, and to Hong Kong, with the intent to 
promote the carrying on of specified unlawful activity in violation of the 
International Emergency Economic Powers Act, 50 U.S.C., §1705. 

 
h. Counts 32 through 35 (False Tax Returns), in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1).  

Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, for the calendar years 1998 through 
2001, he willfully made and subscribed U.S. Individual Income Tax Returns, 
falsely stating that he did not have an interest in or authority over a financial 
account in a foreign country, and failing to report interest income he earned 
from foreign bank accounts totaling $758,866. 

 
i. Counts 36 through 38 (Foreign Bank Account Reports), in violation of 31 

U.S.C. §§ 5314 and 5322.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani admitted that, for the 
calendar years 1999 through 2001, he had a financial interest in and authority 
over a financial account in a foreign country that exceeded $10,000 in 
aggregate value and he knowingly and willfully failed to file a report of the 
same as required by 31 U.S.C. § 5314 and by 31 Code of Federal Regulations 
§ 103.24, which was adopted pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 5314. 

 
3. As a result of his conviction for counts 24 through 31, an order of forfeiture was entered, 

requiring Dr. Anvari-Hamedani to forfeit $650,000 to the United States.  In addition, 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani was sentenced to three years probation, with conditions including:  
(a) 60 days of community confinement; (b) 500 hours of community service; (c) criminal 
monetary penalties, including a special assessment of $3,600, a fine of $500,000, and a 
forfeiture to the United States of $650,000. 
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CONCLUSION OF LAW 
 
The guilty plea and/or the judicial findings of guilt of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani, as set forth in 
Findings of Fact 1 through 3 constitutes a “plea of guilty to, a judicial finding of guilt of, or a 
judicial finding of eligibility for intervention in lieu of conviction for, a felony,” as that language 
is used in Section 4731.22(B)(9), Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 

* * * * * 
 
It is undisputed that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani was convicted for multiple, serious felonies not 
committed in the course of his medical practice.  The question is whether a severe sanction is 
warranted or whether mitigating circumstances justify a less severe sanction by the Board.  The 
State argues, “in a nutshell,” that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani should no longer be licensed in Ohio 
because he took calculated, illegal steps to transfer millions of dollars to Iran, the resulting 
felonies cast great doubt on his credibility and ability to maintain licensure, and his failure to 
accept responsibility “shows that he cannot be licensed to practice.”  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani 
argues to the contrary -- he contends that he admitted the violations of the law and accepted 
responsibility for those violations.  He lists a number of mitigating factors to support his 
recommendation that “lighter” discipline (less than a suspension) be imposed in this matter, 
including the fact that his purposes were charitable.  If the Board is compelled to suspend 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s certificate, he requests that the suspension be stayed. 
 
The Hearing Examiner does not accept Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s claim that his underlying 
philanthropic desires mitigate the Board’s sanction.  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s false tax returns and 
failure to report his foreign bank accounts for years are not philanthropic actions.  Moreover, 
aggravating circumstances exist:  (1) a selfish motive existed at least with respect to the tax 
returns and foreign bank account reports; (2) a pattern of misconduct occurred; (3) multiple 
violations of federal law occurred over the course of several years; (4) the misconduct adversely 
impacted the government; and (5) his misconduct was willful. 
 
However, mitigating circumstances also exist:  (1) absence of a prior Board disciplinary record; 
(2) the incidents are unlikely to recur; (3) Dr. Anvari-Hamedani disclosed the criminal charges to 
the Board; (4) rehabilitation or remedial measures have begun, via the criminal sentence; (5) 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has shown remorse; and (6) the misconduct occurred more than five years 
ago.  Additionally, the Hearing Examiner notes that Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has served the 
Fostoria community well for many years, his patients want him to continue practicing, the 
federal judge who handled the underlying criminal matter strongly advocates that Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani continue practicing medicine, and a harsh Board sanction would likely end 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s medical career and destroy him financially.  Moreover, the record 
indicates that, to a certain extent during the involved time period, the money transactions 
occurred through financial brokers and the tax filings were prepared by accountants. 
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Upon consideration of the arguments and the evidence, the Hearing Examiner cannot 
recommend that no suspension or a stayed suspension be imposed by the Board, as Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani has advocated.  The Hearing Examiner is moved by the federal judge’s strong 
statements and believes that the Board’s sanction should not, in this case, quash the delicate 
balance intended by the criminal sentence, which is already underway.  However, she respects 
the State’s position in this matter too.  Accordingly, the Hearing Examiner’s recommendation, as 
set forth below, falls in between the parties’ recommendations. 
 
 

PROPOSED ORDER 
 
It is hereby ORDERED, that: 
 
A. PERMANENT REVOCATION, STAYED; SUSPENSION:  The certificate of 

Mohammad Anvari-Hamedani, M.D., to practice medicine and surgery in the State of Ohio 
shall be PERMANENTLY REVOKED.  Such revocation is STAYED, and Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani’s certificate shall be SUSPENDED for an indefinite period of time, but not less 
than two months. 

 
B. CONDITIONS FOR REINSTATEMENT OR RESTORATION:  The Board shall not 

consider reinstatement or restoration of Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s certificate to practice 
medicine and surgery until all of the following conditions have been met: 

 
1. Application for Reinstatement or Restoration:  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall submit 

an application for reinstatement or restoration, accompanied by appropriate fees, if 
any. 

 
2. Certification of Compliance with the Terms of Criminal Probation:  At the time 

he submits his application for reinstatement or restoration, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall 
submit to the Board certification from the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Ohio, Western Division, dated no earlier than thirty days prior to 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s application for reinstatement or restoration, indicating that 
Dr. Anvari-Hamedani has maintained full compliance with terms of probation in 
criminal case number 3:04CR786. 

 
C. PROBATION:  Upon reinstatement or restoration, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s certificate shall 

be subject to the following PROBATIONARY terms, conditions, and limitations for a 
period of at least five years: 
 
1. Obey the Law and Terms of Criminal Probation:  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall 

obey all federal, state and local laws, and all rules governing the practice of medicine 
and surgery in Ohio, and all terms of probation imposed by the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Western Division, in criminal case number 
3:04CR786. 
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2. Declarations of Compliance:  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall submit quarterly 
declarations under penalty of Board disciplinary action or criminal prosecution, 
stating whether there has been compliance with all the conditions of this Order.  The 
first quarterly declaration must be received in the Board’s offices on or before the 
first day of the third month following the month in which Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s 
certificate is restored or reinstated.  Subsequent quarterly declarations must be 
received in the Board’s offices on or before the first day of every third month. 

 
3. Personal Appearances:  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall appear in person for an 

interview before the full Board or its designated representative during the third month 
following the month in which Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s certificate is restored or 
reinstated, or as otherwise directed by the Board.  Subsequent personal appearances 
must occur every six months thereafter, and/or as otherwise requested by the Board.  
If an appearance is missed or is rescheduled for any reason, ensuing appearances shall 
be scheduled based on the appearance date as originally scheduled. 

 
4. Absence from Ohio:  Dr. Anvari-Hamedani shall obtain permission from the Board 

for departures or absences from Ohio.  Such periods of absence shall not reduce the 
probationary term, unless otherwise determined by motion of the Board for absences 
of three months or longer, or by the Secretary or the Supervising Member of the 
Board for absences of less than three months, in instances where the Board can be 
assured that probationary monitoring is otherwise being performed. 

 
5. Noncompliance Will Not Reduce Probationary Period:  In the event Dr. Anvari-

Hamedani is found by the Secretary of the Board to have failed to comply with any 
provision of this Order, and is so notified of that deficiency in writing, such period(s) 
of noncompliance will not apply to the reduction of the probationary period under this 
Order. 

 
D. TERMINATION OF PROBATION:  Upon successful completion of probation, as 

evidenced by a written release from the Board, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani’s certificate will be 
fully restored. 

 
E. REQUIRED REPORTING TO EMPLOYERS AND HOSPITALS:  Within thirty days 

of the effective date of this Order, or as otherwise determined by the Board, Dr. Anvari-
Hamedani shall provide a copy of this Order to all employers or entities with which he is 
under contract to provide health care services or is receiving training; and the Chief of Staff 
at each hospital where he has privileges or appointments.  Further, Dr. Anvari-Hamedani 
shall provide a copy of this Order to all employers or entities with which he contracts to 
provide health care services, or applies for or receives training, and the Chief of Staff 
at each hospital where he applies for or obtains privileges or appointments.  This 
requirement shall continue until Dr. Anvari-Hamedani receives from the Board written 
notification of his successful completion of probation. 
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